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The Synthesewerk Schwarzheide was built by the Germans in nine months during
1937. It was taken cver and partislly dismantled by the Russians after the
Gorman defeat and became a Soviet AG in November 1946. From the end of 1946
to date (llarch 1950} it has operated with a working force (workers, technical
and commercial employees, administrative personnal) varying from 4000 to 4500
persons aspproximately one~third of whom are women,

The present German director of the plant is a man named Veiss, & member of the
SED but not a confirmed Communist. The personnel of the Russian managemen® ~
has repsettedly changed since the plant was converted to a Soviet AG. The.
firat Russian Generel Janager was Makarov, who is not a member of the Russian
communist party. His deputy in 1946 was a Colonel Kitshigin, now believed
to be dead. Iskerov came from the Glavgastoprom, & coal and fusl research . = .7
institute in iloscow, which belongs to the Russian Hindistry for Fuel Industry,
where he was chief of a department {Abteilungsleiter).

Vhen he waes succeeded, in the summer of 1947, by Alexandrov, a member of the
Russian CP, Hakarov remained with the plent at chief engineer. In the summer
of 1948, Alexandrov was replaced by Lavrentiev, a member of the Russien CP
and a very amiént commnist. EKe, in turn, was succeeded at the beginning:

of 1949, by Leontiev, algo a member of the party. Leontiev left in the summer
of the sanc year and was replaced by Akopov, an Armenian, (original name
Akopian) a member of the party. In larch 1950, Akopov was still in cherge

of the plant,

Shortly after the Russians took over the plant, contact was established with
Glavgastoprom and that organization opened an office on the plant premises.
There was a congiderable turnover among the members of this office. They
worked in close cooperatlon with the German staff of the plantis research
department. The Institute, whose nsme was changed to liinefteprom in the
£all of 1949, concluded a contract with the plant for certain research pro-
jects to be done in Schwargheide by the Institute members and the members

of the Gorman research department. This contract was. schiediled to expire
on 31 ilarch 1950.%
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In 1946 and early 1947, a Professor Ranpaport of Glavgastoprom, Hoscow,
directed the work of the Institute members in Schwarzheide; he was recelled
1o Moscow | | During the professor's stay L
in fehwarzhcide, Constanfin Talkov-Penin was his assistant, After 1947,

Engiceer Mirishenkov of Lhe Moscow Institute made frequent appearances at

Schwarzhelde. Iirs. Vassilieva, a chemist, specislist in isowsynthesis,

worked in the Schwarzheide Institute office until the summer of 1948, and

then returned to Russias, Ilirs. Vlassova, a chemist, specializing in methane
dissociatior, worked there until the summer of 1949; lMirs. Smirnova, also

engaged in iso-gynthesis, left the Institute office in July 1949.

Dr, Bludov became head of the Instituts office after Professor Ra: ort's
depertur

| He was succeeded Dy a man named

Haseunov,

Research projects conpleted by members of the German research department were
referred to Bludov (‘ater to Rastunov) or %o Engineer itintshenkov; they were
then given for tranalation to Dr. Silberschatz, born in Lodz, whom the Russien
troops had picked up on their way to Germany and who has since been working
for them as translalor and interpreter. The translated papers, together with
blus prints and samples, wire sent, mostl; by courier, to the loscow Institute,

The plant has been ingaged, under the Germans as well as undsr the Russians, in

the production of hydrocarhons from carbon monoxide and hydrogen by the Fischere

Tropsch process, Ihe raw nateriel used is lignite, which the plant obtains

in small quentities fron the nearby Frenze~lehring mine (formerly called linrga

mine). The bulk of the iignite comes from the Emanuel mine, which belongs to

the Friedlfnder Cowbine :nd is also nearby; the Fransz-Mehring lignite is

of high quality, that frc: the Emanuel mine of medium quality. The plant prcduces

water gas (CO+ H2) from tle lignite in generators built in 1937 by the Ruhr

firm of Koppers. Original'y, the plant had seven such generators two of which ‘;
were dismantled in the fall of 1946 and shipped to the former 1G Farben hydrogena= }
tion plant at Auschwitz., O1 the remsining five generators, one was out of order
until the summer of 1949, Fyem then on, with five generators operating, the
plant has, on the average, priduced the equivalent of 85,000 normal cubie meters
(i.2. 2t O degrees centigrads and 760 nm pressure) of water was per hour, 24 -
hours a day and seven .2ys po wask,®*

The next production step is tie purification of the water gas from sulplur, This
stop 18 necessary vscausge any sulphur remaining in the gas would soil the surface
of the contact sulstance, used in a later production stage with sulphides and )
thus render it lractive.

Purification in carried out in tvo successive stepss first, rough purification
with ferrohydsoxide; second, a more thorough purifiecation, with ferrohydroxide .
combined with sodium bicarbonate. Then, the gas is freed from dust particles

by means of the Cortelle~Lurgl prozess, whereby the dust particles collect at
the anode c.' an electrostatic fie.d, wherein tension varies between 15,000 and
30,000 volas,

Next, tl~ purified ges is led into synthesis ovens (Synthese Normaldruck Ofen) F

these ¢’e ovens without compressors operating at pressures between 0.5 and 3

atmospneres, built by the Lurgl fiim. The ovens contain water circulation

tubes, acting as radiators to keep the temperature between 180 and 190 degrees C,
the only temperature at which tie contact substance works satisfactorily. Iach

tube, is surrounded by a large numbaer of lamellar disks betwesn which the contact

substance is ylaced,

The contaet substance used et Schwarzheide is malnly cobelt. It is produced in
a sgoeclal seciion of the plant by precipitating cobalt carbonate upon infasorial
earth (KieseJgur) to which small quentities of thorium dioxide and magnesium
oxide have been added. This mixture is reduced with hydrogen, leaving a metellic
cobult, plus the two above-mentioned additions on kieselgur, ag a workabla
connact subrtance.

When the R.ssians took control of the plant there were supplies of cobalt and
therium; nest of these were taken away by the Russians however, and sines then
no new suplies have been received. The plant was therefore forced tc recondis

tion and 7a-use continpmaly the cld contact substance, | - 25X1
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The Russian plant menagement subsequently provided kieselgur seamples which
proved to be of very high quality from Kisatibi in the Caucasus region,

But for some reason, kieselgur from Kisatibl was never delivered in quantity.
The plant tried for some time to replace 1t with quartz sand from the
Hoyerswerds (Saxcny) region, but the atitempt failed. Finelly, after the
discovery of a kisselgur deposit near Coswig in the Wittenberg region, the plant
drew its supplies from there,

The gas is aynthesized in the ovens to a great variety of hydrocarbons in fluid
and solid form, Some of the solid paraffins crystallize on the contact substance
which, therefors, must be clesned every twoto three weeks. The process is

carried ou$ in the following stages:

a, After the waler gas has passed through the ovens, it is conducted through
two coal towers (Aktivikohletdirme) filled with charccal which absorbs the
hydrocarbons contained in the gas. Then, water steam is sent through the
towers which separates the hydrocarbons from the charcoel; after the vapor
has cooled, so-called A.K. gascline 1s sepsrated from ity the boiling point
of this gasoline lies betwcen 30 and 180 degreesC and its octane number is 45,

b, 4fter having passed through the coul towers the gas is conducted inbo Borsig
compressors and distilled. The result is a gasoline (Treibgas) having octane
numbers between 70 snd 75, In the distiliation process, propane and butane
are separated from the other producte; some quantities of these two products
are sold by the plant directly to East Zone consumers upon written authoriza-
tion from the iAnistry for Leonomy.

¢, The products mentioned in "a" and "b" above come from the gas after passage
through the synthesis ovens (Restgas). The direct product of the ovens, too,
is & great variety of hydrocsrbons which are separated by distillation
into different products, among which are Kogasin 1 (boiling point between
180 and 230 degrees C.), Kogasin 2 (230 and 260 degreecs) and other products
with boiling points between 320 and 330 degrecs. C.

d. After separation of all fluld hydrocarbons from the syntheslized product,
the solid residus, called "Gatsch", 1s subjected tc vacuum distillation
and maero-paraffin is won from it. The Russians did not show much interest
in this pert of the production wun%il the end of 1948 and the beginning
of 1949 when they urgently requested production of highly-bleached paraffin
with a high boiling point. Following this request, the plant developed a very
white paraffin with a boiling point higher than 90 degrees C. The research
[ Mepertment of the plant has continued the development of such paraffin and,
" in ierch 1950, had developed, on a laboratory scaele, a very white paraffin
with a boiling polnt of 103 degrees C; the method used consisted mainly cf
washing out with butane all components having lower beiling points,

From the summer of 1949 on, after all Koppers generators were in working order, the
plant had an output of hydrocarbons of all kinds (fluid and solid) equivalent to a
yearly production of approximately 100,000 tons; roughly 50 of this consisted of
gosolines,

In lay 1947, each normal cubic meter of water gas ylelded 76 grams of final producta;
by the fall of 1949, this figure had boen increased to 128 grems.*+** The entire
output, with the exceptions mentioned under paragraph 15b, is taken over by the
Derunapht firm in Potsdam, from where it ie shipped by rail in tank cars, ¥

As nentioned above, the resesrch départment of the plant worked in close
cooperation with Russian specialists assigned by Glavgastoprom, later renamed
linefteprom. The research department was administratively independent of the
German management mtil 1949; in the course of that year both it and the central
laboratory of the plant were placed under German authority,

In the fall of 1949, the research department employed a total of about 120 persous,
wiiile the centrsl laboratory had a total of about 200 persons (inciuding specialists,
workers, and administrative personnel), Among the speclallists who were employed

by the reseerch department in larch 1950 and are supposedly still there. the

following are knowns CONFIDENTIAL
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\ Dr., (fnu) Geigenmiiller, formerly with the Laute plant of
the Vereinigte Aluminiumwerke near Hoyerswerdag

‘\\\' Dr, Hans Siebeneck;
Or, Rudelf Kaiser, formerly with the Dynamit AG in Christianstadt,
Silesia;
\ Dr. Hermann Denker;
Dr. Gerhaerd Gottschalk,

In September 1946, the research department was headed by Dr. Karl icyerf '

| In 1946 and early 1947, lalkov-DPanin of Glavgastoprom worked

in the research department on a projech dealing with&“condensation of olefines
to oils by means of aluminum contacts?\ lielkov-Panin left before the projsct
was completed and 3iebeneck finished it in 1947 using aluminum chloride as the
contact substance. In 1946 and part of 1947, siebeneck, a distillation expert,
was also engaged in{research on the"oxidation of 'Gatsch' into alcchols by use
of air under normel pressure' (Fischer process)," project assignad to him by the
Glavgastoprom office, Sicbeneck did not succeed and the project was abandoned
in 1947, Ho subsequently solved the problem by chlorination, but the Hussians
were no longer interested. Siebsneck is now (liarch 1950) working on the
following projects:

"Oxc~synthesis, following the procedure used by the
Ruhrehemie, Oberhausan;

“Volatilization of olls";
"Production of softening agents from Fischer-synthesis products,"

Gottschalk is also engaged in volatilization research; Denker works on the
"analysis of synthesis products.” In October 1948, Kaiser, started research

on “Fii.uid-Synthesis"/on the basis of en article published in an American techricnl
mgazine provided by Glavgastoprom; this work was not successful and was later
discontinued. He was also charged with research on \'Synt‘nesis with iron contacts
under medium pressure| (5 4o 40 atmospheres)’which helalsc abandoned and turned
over to Denker early in 1950, Geigenmiiller is engaged in the''study of the
activity of contacts,"

Dr. Utte liinter came to the research department of the plant in September 1946
after having been employed previously by the Chemische Technische Reichsanstalt
and the Research Institute of the Deutsche Waffen-und Mumitionsfebriken in Iiibeck;
he left the plant in September 1949. During his smployment “here, he was charged
with the following research projectss

A.|"0xidation of propane into olefines without exterior energy supply". This task
was assigned to him by the Russians at the end of 1946, and was completed in
abcut a year, The following results were obtained:

95 percent (approximateiy 1980 gramsjof the equivalent of one cubic meter
of propene can be converted into:

ethylene 58 volume pmrcent
propylene 15.7 *» !
but;glen_g '4 21 H

77.8 volume percent of the convert
propane or 1150 to 1200 grams of olefinegs the time :
elapsed in this conversion 1s .0l ~,06 seconds,

In addition, the reaction generates water gas in proportion of 1,62 H, s 1 €0,
as well as small guantities of methane and eurbon dioxide. The reamction takes
place without contact substance and without exterior heat supply:

bo\“Production of water gas (HpC0) for Fischer-Tropsch synthesis through dissceia-
tion of methane from oxygen, without exterior energy supply." This project
A

was ordered by the Russian ” U 5580l dgndielruary 1949,
edENT R
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The reaction takes place on the basis of the equation CH +30, & CCH-2H
with the ald of nickel oxlde contact substanece., One nori cublic mete

of a mixture of methane and oxygen in proportion of 65 : 34, containing
algo 1057 nitrogen impurities, furnishes slightly more than 1,7 normal
cubic meter of water gas in proportion 2,00 H, to 1,00 GO, The resulting
gas congists of 605 Hos 30% CO, 3% CHy, 1.2% 802 and 5.8% lip:

co \“Iswsynthesis from C0 and Hyp, according to methods developed by the -

25X1

Germang during the war." This project was ordered by the Russians at

the end of 1948 and was completed on 31 August 1949. It was known

o the Russlans that iso-synthesis had been ce:ried cut as seeret war

work by the Germans in the Coal Research Institute in Iilheim, Ruhrs

one of the technicians had been Dr, (fnu) Pichler| |
Detalls of the Itiilheim experiments were not known in Schwmarzhelde when

the research project was carried out; the results vary accordingly, The
Selwarzhelde reaction was carried out at & pressure of 300 atmcspheres

and a conversion temperature of about 437 degrees G The contact substance
used in Schwarzheide was thorium oxide (ThO,) plus 15 of cerium oxide

{Co 05), wheress that used in Milheinm was T 05 on a carrier substance of

Al, 03, In Schwarzheide, one normel cubic meter of Hp CO, in proportion

1l t 1 CO furnished 127 %o 150 grams of synthesis products, The fluid

part of the synthesls products consisted of pasclines having boiling

points of from 40 to 180 degrees € and an wsctane number of from 84 to 86 (the
IMlheim octane nmumber was 78); the paseous part consisted o . mixture of
isobutanc and isobutylene (80%) in about equal quantities, and 20% dimethyl
uther, The procedure developed in Schwarzheide is an expensive one mainly
because the apparatus used requires copper-plated containers and supply pipes
of chromiwn steel, The apparatus used in Schwarzheide wae borrowed from

the Bunaverke in Schkopau; before it could be returned there however,

lioncow ordered its shipment to Russla; early in llarch 1950, 1% was packed
and ready for shipment in Schwarzheide. The synthesis products were flown
%o Russia in specisl pressure containers,

*l:|_q_qmmeg§x At the beginning of larch 1950, it was not known whether

the contract was cxtended or whether the Institute had discontinued its
activities at Schwargheide.

ks

k2o

LK

Gommenk: The plant operates in three shifts, soven iays per week,

[Comment: The maximum figure reached by the plant was 143 grams in 1943,

Comment: The fipal destination of the output is unkmown but it is

velieved that the bulk of it, if not all, goes to the Russian Afmy of
Gecupation,

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2006/02/06 : CIA-RDP82-00457R005300480004-1



